
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS
3. ROLL CALL
4. PRESENTATION

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

9. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Communications

B. Minutes-January 20, 2026 Regular Township Board Meeting

C. Bills
D. Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Maintenance Contract Award
E. Black History Month Resolution

F. Acceptance of 2025 Planning Commission Annual Report
G. 2026 Concrete Repair Contract Award

H. Economic Development Corporation Appointment
I. Michigan Townships Association Principles of Governance

10. HEARING
A. Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan Termination

11. BOARD ACTION ITEMS
A. Sanctuary #2 Public Streetlighting Improvement Special Assessment District #430– Resolution 

#1 & #2
B. Sierra Ridge #4 Public Streetlighting Improvement Special Assessment District #431 –

Resolution #1 & #2

12. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan Termination
B. ITC Oneida-Sabine Lake Electric Transmission Line Proposed Routes

13. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

14. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

15. CLOSED SESSION-Motion to enter closed session pursuant to MCL 15.268(h) for the purpose of 
discussing a confidential legal opinion regarding the pending Meridian Township v. West Shore Fire 
Inc. litigation with the Township attorney.

16. ADJOURNMENT

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro 
Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board 
by contacting: Township Manager Tim Dempsey, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

February 3, 2026 6:00 PM 



9.A

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS 





From:
To:
Subject: Concern about a misleading information in the Jan 20th packet
Date: Tuesday, January 20, 2026 5:25:15 PM
Attachments: image.png

image.png

Dear Board Members,

My name is Yidi Du, and I am writing to express my concern regarding misleading
information found in the January 20, 2026, Township Board Regular Meeting Packet.

The packet includes an email stating that the recently completed Tri-County Housing Demand
Study shows a need for approximately 1,400 housing units in Meridian Township. This
statement is misleading as it fails to clarify that this figure is a combination of both owner-
occupied and rental properties. By omitting this distinction, the subsequent rental property
plan implies a disproportionate need for rental units.

According to page 5 of the same document, the study clearly states that only 492 rental units
are needed, while 956 units are required for for-sale housing. Based on these figures, building
single-family homes or condos for sale would best suit the township’s actual needs.

I am deeply concerned by how this data has been presented. I hope the board will address
these discrepancies to ensure the community is accurately informed.

Best regards,

Yidi Du





From:
To:
Subject: Letter to Township Board - CPE Development
Date: Wednesday, January 21, 2026 11:50:45 AM

To the board members and residents of Meridian Township,

As a CPE resident who has attended all meetings regarding this matter, I respectfully disagree with Mr.
Eyde's characterization of CPE resident comments. These remarks have been misrepresented and
overstated. Our primary concerns focus on the significant increase in apartment residents adjacent to a
small single-family home community and the resulting impact on traffic, infrastructure, and neighborhood
safety. The proposed development appears too large for the area, a concern acknowledged by both
Board members and Planning Commission members. It is important that the Board consider these issues
objectively rather than being influenced by negative portrayals of concerned residents.

The claim that Meridian Township needs 1,400 new housing units is inaccurate; this figure applies to the
larger Lansing area. According to the referenced report, only 492 rental units are needed over the
next five years, about 98 per year, which is roughly three times the number proposed by
Continental. It's essential to focus on precise facts rather than inflated figures.

The claim that the Eydes “have foregone profit to meet the demands of the greater community” is
irrelevant to this situation and is not backed by any evidence.

It is our sincere hope that the Township Board will not accede to the demands of a company with this type
of mindset and will instead do what is best for Meridian Township.

Thank you,
Paulette Grace



From:
To:
Subject: Clarification and Response to Eyde"s Letter Regarding Continental Project in January 20 Agenda
Date: Wednesday, January 21, 2026 8:39:49 PM

Dear Meridian Township Board of Trustees,

I respectfully request that this message be shared with all Trustees of the
Meridian Township Board.

I noted that a letter from Mr. Nathaniel Eyde was included in the January 20
meeting agenda. As a Central Park Estates (CPE) resident who has attended all
public meetings related to the proposed Continental Properties development, I am
writing to clarify several statements in that letter that mischaracterize resident input,
misapply housing data, and introduce considerations that are not appropriate to a
land-use decision of this nature.

1. Resident comments have been misrepresented and taken out of context.
CPE residents have not made disparaging, discriminatory, or exclusionary remarks
regarding potential residents of the proposed development. Terms such as
“transient” were used in a neutral and commonly accepted planning context to
describe higher residential turnover rates typically associated with large multifamily
developments. This language was not directed at individuals or groups, but rather at
anticipated land-use impacts commonly discussed in planning and zoning
deliberations.

Resident concerns have consistently focused on the scale and intensity of the
proposed development and its immediate adjacency to a small single-family
neighborhood. These concerns include traffic volume, road safety, infrastructure
capacity, emergency access, and overall neighborhood compatibility. Importantly,
these issues were acknowledged during public meetings by both Planning
Commission members and Township Trustees, including statements recognizing
that the proposed development may be too large for this particular site.
Characterizing these concerns as improper or exclusionary shifts attention away
from their legitimate planning basis.

2. Housing demand figures cited in the letter are applied inaccurately and
selectively.
While the Tri-County Housing Demand Study references a regional need of
approximately 1,448 housing units, this figure does not represent rental housing
demand within Meridian Township alone. As clarified in correspondence from
Trustee Nickolas Lentz and documented in the Housing Data Book (page 45), only
492 units of that total are projected to be rental housing over the next five
years. The remaining 956 units—nearly twice as many—are identified as for-



sale housing.

This distinction is critical. The data does not support the assertion that Meridian
Township requires a large, concentrated multifamily rental development of this
scale at this location in order to meet its documented housing needs. Meeting
housing demand does not require accepting any proposal regardless of size, density,
or site compatibility.

3. Assertions regarding “foregone profit” are unsupported and not relevant to
zoning review.
Claims that the developer has sacrificed profit to serve the “greater community” are
neither substantiated in the public record nor relevant to the Board’s land-use
responsibilities. Zoning and site plan decisions must be based on objective planning
criteria, infrastructure capacity, and long-term community impact—not on a
developer’s internal financial considerations. Moreover, given that the majority of
identified housing needs in the Tri-County region is for owner-occupied housing,
expanding the for-sale housing supply would more directly align with documented
regional demand than adding a high-density rental complex.

4. Design features and zoning comparisons do not resolve compatibility
concerns.
References in the letter to increased setbacks, access limitations, or alternative
commercial zoning do not adequately address the core issue of overall
development intensity. While such design elements may mitigate certain impacts,
they do not resolve concerns related to traffic generation, service demand,
emergency access, or population concentration adjacent to an established single-
family neighborhood. The potential shortcomings of hypothetical alternative
developments do not, in themselves, justify approval of a proposal that may be
incompatible at the proposed scale.

5. Advocacy framing is inappropriate in a quasi-judicial process.
It is concerning that residents who have participated respectfully and constructively
throughout this process have been portrayed negatively or as having a particular
“mindset” that should not be accommodated. Township Board decisions on zoning
matters are quasi-judicial in nature and should be grounded in evidence, planning
standards, and site-specific analysis—not moral judgments about resident
motivations or appeals to disregard stakeholder input.

For these reasons, we respectfully urge the Township Board to continue evaluating
this proposal objectively, relying on accurate data, sound planning principles, and
the specific characteristics of this site. Residents who have engaged in good faith
should not be discounted for raising legitimate concerns about scale, compatibility,
and long-term community impact.



It is our sincere hope that the Township Board will continue to act in the best
interest of Meridian Township as you consider the Continental Properties proposal.

Thank you for your time and careful consideration.

Sincerely,
Jade Shi





From:
To:
Subject: Authentix development-Holland, MI
Date: Wednesday, January 28, 2026 3:45:37 PM

Dear Board:

Since a development by Authentix is under consideration here in Meridian
Township, it might be helpful to look at what they have recently built in Holland,
Michigan.  There are no shade trees, and the overall esthetic appeal of the property
is lacking.  It looks very barren, and uncared for.  The negatives of allowing this to
move forward have already been discussed at length, so I would only ask that
consideration be given to the quality of the development under consideration.  Do
we want to bring in a sub-par apartment complex, that will lower property values of
those existing homes that are adjacent to this new construction?  

https://www.yelp.com/biz_photos/authentix-quincy-street-holland?
select=q4_cZvjEka7kgMC9V0HNyg

Sincerely,

Charles Kotz







 
2. If so, can you provide or direct me to copies of the bylaws, covenants, or Articles of

Incorporation on file?
 

3. If no such records exist, what is the proper process for verifying whether this SHOALS
RESIDENTIAL ASSOCIATION (HOA) is authorized to collect fees from homeowners in this
neighborhood?

 
Any guidance or documents you can share would be helpful. If this request should go to a specific
department or staff member, please let me know and I will reach out accordingly.
 
 
Regards,

 
Shahzad Khalid, 
CHFI, CISSP, CISA, CCSP, ITIL, PMP
Cell:  
Email: 

 

              

The information contained in this communication is highly confidential and is intended

solely for the use of the individual(s) to whom this communication is directed. If you are not

the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any viewing, copying, disclosure or

distribution of this information is prohibited. This electronic message transmission contains
information that may be attorney-client privileged, proprietary or confidential. The
information in this message is intended only for use by the individual(s) to whom it is
addressed. If you believe you have received this message in error, please contact me
immediately and be aware that any use, disclosure, copying or distribution of the contents of
this message is strictly prohibited.
 
 









 

  

January 26, 2026 

Dear Members of the Meridian Township Board and Community, 

On behalf of Okemos Public Schools, I extend my deepest condolences to the family of Dr. 
Herring Jackson, to the Meridian Township Board, and to all who were touched by her 
remarkable life of service, one served with distinction and with leadership defined by thoughtful 
collaboration, steadfast integrity, and a genuine devotion to the people she served. 

Dr. Herring Jackson was widely respected for her 25 year commitment to public service as a 
Planning Commissioner, Township Trustee, and Meridian Township Supervisor.  and her ability 
to bring people together in service of the community. She led with purpose, intellect, and grace, 
and her contributions helped strengthen local governance and community partnerships across 
Meridian Township.  

As Superintendent of Okemos Public Schools, I am grateful for Dr. Herring Jackson’s 
collaborative spirit and her strong support for public education. She understood the importance 
of schools as the heart of a community and valued the partnership between Meridian Township 
and Okemos Public Schools. Her leadership helped foster relationships that will continue to 
benefit students, families, and residents for years to come. 

We also extend our sincere appreciation to Meridian Township for the enduring legacy of 
leadership that Dr. Herring Jackson leaves behind. Her service set a high standard for civic 
responsibility, principled governance, and community-centered decision-making. 

Please know that our thoughts are with Dr. Herring Jackson’s family, friends, colleagues, and 
the entire Meridian Township community during this time of loss. She will be remembered with 
deep respect, admiration, and gratitude. 

With sympathy and appreciation, 

 
 

John J. Hood - Superintendent  

John J. Hood 
john.hood@okemosk12.net  

4406 North Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864 
Phone: 517-706-5007  Fax: 517-349-6235 

 
“Together…educating with excellence, empowering each learner for life.” 



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
January 28, 2026 

 
    CONTACT: Amber Clark, Neighborhoods & Economic 

Development Director 
517.853.4568 | clark@meridian.mi.us 

Meridian Township Accepting Applications for Match on Main Program  
Meridian Township’s DDA to Sponsor Businesses in Downtown District 

 
Meridian Township, MI – Meridian Township’s Downtown Development Authority (DDA) is now 
accepting applications to sponsor local businesses for the Match on Main program, a grant opportunity 
offered through the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC).  

Business owners looking to expand or relocate within Meridian Township’s downtown district can apply 
for a matching grant of up to $25,000 to cover eligible project expenses.  

“The Match on Main program is one of the ways that we create opportunity for investment and growth in 
and for our community. The commitment from the DDA to provide the required 10% match allows a local 
business owner to invest 100% of their funding into their project,” stated Angela Wright, Chair of the DDA.  

The Township’s DDA will cover the required 10% match for eligible small businesses that apply. To get 
started, business owners should visit https://bit.ly/MatchOnMainApplication to complete and submit the 
online application. The DDA will review submissions for eligibility and forward accepted applications to the 
MEDC on behalf of the businesses. Successful applicants may receive up to $25,000 for their project. 
Applications will be accepted by the Meridian DDA until Friday, February 13, 2026. 

Some of the eligible expenses include: 

• Design and layout, including renderings, floor plans, merchandise layouts, and construction 
drawings. 

• Interior renovations (floors, walls, ceilings, electrical, lighting, furniture, kitchen installation, fire 
suppression, and other code items). 

• Outdoor spaces such as dining areas, beer gardens, or other approved uses. Exterior signage, doors, 
and windows may also be permitted. 

• Marketing and technology to assist in customer connection (website upgrades or e-commerce 
integration), operational changes, the purchase of a point-of-sale system, or inventory expenses for 
retail goods. 

“Meridian Township is actively pursuing ways to support our small business owners with a multitude of 
allowances,” said Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director Amber Clark. “Creating a thriving, 
bustling downtown starts with quality and healthy businesses. Offering assistance to attract new 
businesses is just one of the ways we can revitalize our downtown.” 

Meridian Township is eligible to apply for MEDC funding due to its status as a Redevelopment Ready 
Community (RRC). The RRC certification allows Meridian Township access to funding incentives that 
otherwise would not be available. 

For info or resources, visit meridian.mi.us/BusinessResources, or contact Amber Clark at 
clark@meridian.mi.us or 517.853.4568. 

mailto:clark@meridian.mi.us
https://bit.ly/MatchOnMainApplication
https://www.meridian.mi.us/businesses/business-resources
mailto:clark@meridian.mi.us


 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 26-02 
2843 Grand River Avenue 

WEDNESDAY, February 18, 2026 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request #26-02 
2843 Grand River 

Public Hearing 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian 
Municipal Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 
517.853.4560) to hear all persons interested in a variance request from Foresight Supersign. 
The applicant is proposing to add a freestanding sign that exceeds the permitted size and does 
not meet the required setbacks at 2843 Grand River. The subject site is zoned C-2, Commercial.   
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse    Angela Demas 
   January 28, 2026   Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 
 

  



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 26-03 
5288 Haversham Drive 

WEDNESDAY, February 18, 2026 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request #26-03 
5288 Haversham Drive 

Public Hearing 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian 
Municipal Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 
517.853.4560) to hear all persons interested in a variance request from Cheryl A. Schubel. The 
applicant is proposing to construct a three seasons room that does not meet the required rear 
yard setback at 5288 Haversham Drive. The subject site is zoned RA, Single Family.   
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse    Angela Demas 
   January 28, 2026   Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 
 

  



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Variance Request 26-04 
5384 Van Atta 

WEDNESDAY, February 18, 2026 

 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Variance Request #26-04 
5384 Van Atta Road 

Public Hearing 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Charter Township of Meridian 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, February 18, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian 
Municipal Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 
517.853.4560) to hear all persons interested in a variance request from January Chvala. The 
applicant is proposing to create two lots from one existing lot. One proposed lot does not meet 
the minimum lot width requirement at 5384 Van Atta Road. The subject site is zoned RR, Rural 
Residential.   
 
Information may be examined at the Department of Community Planning and Development, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 
Michigan, 48864, or by email to chapman@meridian.mi.us, or at the public hearing. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse    Angela Demas 
   January 28, 2026   Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 
 

  



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Rezoning #26004 (Capstone) 

MONDAY, February 23, 2026 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Rezoning #26004 (Capstone) 
Public Hearing 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold a public hearing on Monday, February 23, 2026 at 6:30 p.m. in the Meridian Municipal 
Building, Town Hall Room, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI, 48864 (phone 517-853-4560) to 
hear all persons interested in a rezoning request.  Capstone Collegiate Communities, LLC is 
requesting to rezone two parcels, approximately 66 acres, located at the east end of Hannah 
Boulevard, from PO (Professional Office) and RAA (Single-Family Residential) to RD (Multiple 
Family, maximum 8 dwelling unit per acre) subject to a conditional rezoning agreement. 
 
Materials related to the request are available for viewing in the Department of Community 
Planning and Development office (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, 48864), Monday-Friday, 
8am-5pm, or on the Township website at the following location: 
www.meridian.mi.us/besinesses/development-projects. Written comments may be sent 
prior to the public hearing to the Planning Commission, Charter Township of Meridian, 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 48864, or by email to shorkey@meridian.mi.us. 
 
Publish:   City Pulse     Angela Demas 
   February 4, 2026    Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 
 
 

 



9.B

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of January 20, 2026 as submitted.  (1)

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
January 20, 2026 with the following amendment(s):[insert 
amendments]

(1)

(1)



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
TUESDAY, January 20, 2026, 6:00PM 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee 

Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 
ABSENT: None 

STAFF: Township Manager Dempsey, Deputy Manager Opsommer, IT Director Gebes, 
Community Planning and Development Director Schmitt, Communications Manager 
Diehl 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson called the January 20, 2026, Regular Township Board meeting to order 
at 6:01 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
Clerk Demas called the roll of the Board.  Six Board members present at 6:02 pm. 
 
Trustee Wilson was present at 6:11pm. 
 

4. PRESENTATION 
 

None 
 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 6:02 pm. 
 
Marilyn Jonshon, Anne Fitzgerald, Helen LeBlanc, Lisa Nowak, Al LeBlanc, Kent Cassella, Teresa 
DeLisle, Mark Polsdofer, Ashley Latiner, Linda Dufelmeier, Michelle Baumgart, and Sonja 
Fritzsche spoke about the proposed ITC Electrical Transmission line in Ingham County, in 
opposition to a proposed route.   

 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 6:29 pm. 

 
6.  TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

 
Manager Dempsey gave updates on: 
• Continental’s Authentix Project did not appear on the agenda. 
• ITC will be holding listening sessions regarding their proposed project beginning next 

week at Okemos Events Center.  Staff will attend to collect information. Residents are 



Page 2 

encouraged to attend and provide feedback. 
• Dash and Splash event has been postponed due to anticipated severe weather.  It 

will likely be rescheduled for February. 
• Thanked DPW, Parks and Rec, and Public Safety staff for their service through the 

extreme temperatures. 
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Clerk Demas attended Land Preservation Advisory Board (LPAB) meeting and announced 
upcoming Joint Board & Commission meeting. 
 
Trustee Sundland attended Economic Development Corporation (EDC) meeting. 
 
Trustee Lentz attended Ingham County Chapter of Michigan Townships Association (MTA) 
meeting along with Manager Dempsey. 
 
Trustee Wilson attended Community Resources Commission (CRC) meeting and announced 
that 640 family meals were provided to residents in need over the holidays. 
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Agenda. Supported by Trustee Trezise. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Supervisor Hendrickson listed the consent agenda items.   
 
Treasurer Burghardt moved to approve the consent agenda.  Supported by Trustee 
Wilson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
10. HEARING 

 
A. 2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalks Special Assessment District #21 Public Hearing 

 
Deputy Manager Opsommer gave an overview of the Special Assessment District process. 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened the public hearing at 6:40pm. 



Page 3 

 
Fred Parcells asked about the estimate letter compared to the total cost, highlighting 
changes.  
 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed the public hearing at 6:42. 
 

11. BOARD ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. Patricia Herring Jackson Tribute 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson presented an honorary proclamation for Former Supervisor 
Jackson and announced the upcoming celebration of life. 
 
The Board provided statements of support and remembrance. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to pass and adopt the proclamation. Supported by Trustee 
Wilson. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
B. 2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalks Special Assessment District #21 – Resolution #5 

 
Deputy Manager Opsommer added to his remarks made before the public hearing. 
 
Board discussion was held which included noting this is a process that has been utilized for 
many years and a request for staff to follow up on the resident query from the public 
hearing. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to approve the 2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special 
Assessment District #21 Resolution #5, which adopts the Special Assessment Roll; 
designates the project as “2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment 
District # 21; adopts the Assessment Roll as the “2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk 
Special Assessment District No. 21 Special Assessment Roll”; adopts the District as 
the “2025 Order to Maintain Sidewalk Special Assessment District #21”; adopts the 
amount of $35,877.02 as the final amount for the Assessment Roll; and orders and 
directs the Assessment Roll to be paid and collected. Supported by Trustee Lentz. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

 



Page 4 

At 6:51pm, Supervisor Hendrickson took a moment of privilege to announce that the ITC 
lines are not on this meeting’s agenda.  Discussion may be taken up on a future agenda. 

 
C. Resolution of Support for the 2026 Reimagining Okemos Road BUILD Grant Application 

 
Deputy Manager Opsommer presented the need for the grant funds and items proposed in 
the application. 
 
Board discussion was held which included questions about the proposed split of finances, 
useful life of current opticom system, safety of proposed traffic pattern, current condition of 
Hamilton Road, potential for County participation and funding, coordination between the 
Township and County departments, funding for drains, estimate of tax capture, potential 
for use of brownfield incentives, additional details about the grant award, underground 
storage tanks, and right of way for road expansion. 
 
The Board indicated support for the resolution and grant. 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the resolution of support for the 2026 
Reimagining Okemos Road BUILD Grant Application. Supported by Trustee Lentz. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 
 

At 7:31pm, Supervisor Hendrickson called a 5-minute recess.  The Board reconvened at 
7:41pm. 
 
 

D. Recycling Center Facility 
 
Deputy Manage Opsommer gave an overview of the two proposed options and potential for 
grant funds. 
 
Board discussion was held which included a question about previous attempts at this grant. 
Comments were made about improving the existing recycling center, other ways to recycle 
items, and comparing the options adding that option 1 of creating a second facility would be 
costly compared to option 2 to improve the existing facility. 
 
The Board indicated their support for option 2. 
 

12. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A. Chicken Ordinance Update 

 
Director Schmitt updated the Board. 
 
Board discussion was held which included questions about the number of animals 
permitted, restrictions on breeding, RB lot size, and setback requirements for coops and 



Page 5 

hutches. Comments were made about speaking with neighbors, not including RB and RX 
zoning codes because of small lot size, and that this topic was asked about in listening 
sessions. 
 
The Board indicated support for taking action on this item. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to refer Section 86-368(8) Raising and Keeping of Chickens 
and Rabbits as Nonagricultural Use, to the Planning Commission for review of 
expanding the areas in which backyard chickens and rabbits are permitted. 
Supported by Clerk Demas. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee 
Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
13. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 8:07 pm. 
 
Lisa Nowak spoke about the proposed ITC Electrical Transmission line, in opposition to a 
proposed route.   
 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 8:10 pm. 
 

14. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 

None 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Lentz moved to adjourn. Supported by Trustee Sundland. 

 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 

 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm. 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________________________ 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 





















 

 

9.D 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Board Members 
 
From:  Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager 

Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  January 30, 2026 
 
Re: Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Maintenance Contract Award 
 
 
Township staff recently requested proposals for professional services for the performance of 
mowing, weed trimming, and related grounds maintenance work for the Pedestrian-Bicycle 
Pathway system and the Okemos Road, Marsh Road, Dobie Road, and Grand River Ave bridges. 

The low bid was from Barkham & Co. in the amount of $3,290 per mow for pathways. The only 
other bid received was for $10,044 per mow. We typically have about 13 mows per year, so the 
contract will cost about $42,770, per year. We currently pay $2,475 per mow, or about $31,175 per 
year.  
 
Township staff recommend awarding this contract to the low bidder, Barkham & Co. Barkham & 
Co. is our existing contractor for this contract. 
 
The Board approved funding for this contract in the 2026 Township Budget. This project shall be 
funded out of account #: 216-440.450-820.000. The contract contains an option to renew the 
contract for an additional four years (i.e. five years in total) and each bidder was required to bid 
the percentage increases for each renewal year. These bided percentage increases are also 
contained in the attached bid tab. The lower bidder submitted a bid for 1% increases over the four 
optional renewal years.  
 
We are happy to answer any questions the Board may have. 
 
The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT WITH BARKHAM & CO. AND DIRECT THE 
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT. 

 
Attachment: 
 

1. Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Maintenance Contract Bid Tab 
2. Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Maintenance RFP 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/31038


2026 Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Maintenance Contract Award Bid Tab 

Bid Item Unit 

Barkham & Co.  Lawn Stars Group, LLC 
181 Haslett Rd   
Williamston, MI 48895 

2150 Tomlinson Rd, Mason, 
MI 48854 

Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway System Per Mow $2,840.00 $7,440.00 
Okemos Road Bridgte and Median Islands Per Mow $150.00 $744.00 
Marsh Road Bridge Per Mow $150.00 $620.00 
Dobie Road Bridge Per Mow $75.00 $620.00 
Grand River Ave Bridge Per Mow $75.00 $620.00 
All Facilities Per Mow $3,290.00 $10,044.00 
2027 Renewal Percent Increase Percentage 1.0% 7.8% 
2028 Renewal Percent Increase Percentage 1.0% 7.8% 
2029 Renewal Percent Increase Percentage 1.0% 7.8% 
2030 Renewal Percent Increase Percentage 1.0% 7.8% 
Tree and Brush Trimming Per Hour $75.00 $155.00 
Mulch Landscape Beds Per Hour $75.00 $155.00 
Winterize Irrigation Per Hour $100.00 $95.00 
Landscape Mulch (Material) Per Cyd $75.00 $28.00-$50.00 
Lawn Restoration (Mobilization Per Day) Per Day Did Not Bid $1,100.00 
Laqwn Restoration (Topsoil, Hydroseed & Loose 
Mulch) Per Syd $6.00-$12.00 $28.00 
Laqwn Restoration (Topsoil, Seed & Mulch 
Blankets) Per Syd $6.00-$12.00 $36.00 

 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. E

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor  

January 30, 2026

Resolution Commemorating Black History Month

Black History Month is an annual observance in the United States during the month of February.  The 
attached document has been drafted by staff members for Township Board approval.  Our diversity is 
something we welcome, embrace and celebrate in Meridian Township. 

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION COMMEMORATING BLACK HISTORY MONTH.

Attachment: 

1. Resolution Commemorating Black History Month



RESOLUTION COMMEMORATING BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held on the 3rd day of February 2026, at 6:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by______and supported by 

WHEREAS, Meridian Township acknowledges the contributions of African Americans to the 
history of the United States and that all people of the United States benefit from the inclusion of 
African American contributions to US history; and 

WHEREAS, In February, Meridian Township recognizes Black History Month as an 

opportunity to reflect on the contributions of black history to Township history, Michigan history 
and US history; and 

WHEREAS, Meridian Township encourages learning from the past in order to understand 

and improve the experiences that shape the United States; and 

WHEREAS, African Americans engage and serve the United States at all levels of 

American life including government, military, academia, and industry; and 

WHEREAS, During Black History Month Meridian Township acknowledges and 

commemorates the importance of African American citizenship, engagement and resilience; and 

WHEREAS, In Meridian Township, Gilbert Sherman was the first African American to serve 
on the Township Board, appointed Township Treasurer in 1999.  In 2000, Gilbert Sherman was the 

first African American to run for the office of Treasurer and thus for a Township Board seat; and 

WHEREAS, Milton L. Scales was the first African American elected to the Township Board in 
2012.  He served from 2012-2016; and  

WHEREAS, Since 2015, the Meridian Township Board has adopted a recurring commitment 

to increased diversity in all aspects of Township function, and specifically in it’s “Board Goals and 

Objectives”; and 

WHEREAS, In November 2016, Patricia Herring Jackson, became the first African American 

female elected to the Township Board, as a Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, In 2021, the federal government declared Juneteenth a National Independence 

Day, a federal holiday for us all and Meridian Township began hosting community celebrations to 

bring awareness of the holiday and its importance to honor the true end of slavery in America; and 



WHEREAS, In February 2022, Patricia Herring Jackson, was the first African American 

female appointed to the Township Board, as Supervisor and in November 2022, she was elected to 

serve as Township Supervisor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, that Meridian Township 

commemorates Black History Month to pay tribute to the generations of African Americans who 
struggled with adversity and to celebrate the accomplishments, contributions, and history of  African 
Americans. 

ADOPTED:  YEAS: 

NAYS: 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

)  ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the 
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of 
the Township Board on the 3rd day of February 2026. 

Angela Demas 
Meridian Township Clerk 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

To: Members of the Planning Commission 

From: Brian J. Shorkey, AICP 
Principal Planner 

Date: January 12, 2025 

Re: 2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

Staff is pleased to present the following Annual Report for the Planning Commission’s consideration. 
Under the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, Planning Commissions are required to create an annual 
report outlining the work that was done in the previous year, to be presented to the legislative body 
in the local municipality. There are number of items to track, from zoning changes to site plans and 
potential ordinance changes. If the Planning Commission has suggestions for other items they would 
like to see in this year-end wrap up in future years, please let us know and Staff would be happy to 
incorporate them.  

Development Reviews 
2025 was a productive year for planning activity in the Township and included an updates of the Off-
Street Parking regulations. The attached charts outline all of the applications that were submitted in 
2025. 

Overall, there were 27 new applications submitted for review last year, including projects that are 
administratively reviewed, down from 33 the year before. 12 of these applications were reviewed by 
the Planning Commission, down slightly from 15 the year before. 

Variances 
In addition to the Planning Commission and administrative applications, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
heard 12 requests in 2025, the same number as in 2024. The majority related to residential properties, 
but there were some commercial requests as well.  

Although not specifically related to the Planning Commission’s work in 2025, a synopsis of Zoning 
Board of Appeals activities for the year is attached at the end of this report, to show that Board’s work 
and the occasional overlap with the Planning Commission.  

Zoning Amendments 
There were three ordinance text amendments reviewed by the Planning Commission in 2025. Two of 
them regarded updates of the off-street parking ordinance, the first being Sec. 86-755 – Schedule of 
Requirements for Parking Space and the second being Sec. 86-758 – Landscaping. The third text 
amendment was in response to complaints about roosters in the township and established zoning 
regulations to address the issue. All three text amendments are subsequently approved. 

There was also one rezoning request that were reviewed by the Commission in 2025. Rezoning 
property is similar in nature to the text amendments described above, in that it amends the official 
zoning map for the township, which is adopted as part of the Zoning Ordinances. The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of one of the request.  

9. F



P a g e  | 2 
2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Current Planning Commission Membership 
The Planning Commission entered 2025 with one vacancy. That vacancy was filled in April when 
Commissioner Fowler was appointed. However, the Planning Commission ended 2025 with one 
vacancy after Commissioner Fowler accepted a new position and resigned in November. The seven 
members of the Commission in 2025 were as follows: 
 

Alisande Shrewsbury, Chair William Fowler 
Christina Snyder, Vice Chair Bill McConnell 
James McCurtis, Secretary Brandon Brooks 

 Jeff Romback 
 
 

 
Synopsis of Planning Activities – 2024 

Case # Applicant Request Location Decision 

ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS 

25002 Planning 
Commission 

Update of the Off-Street Parking 
Requirements 

 

Townshipwide Approved 

25013 Planning 
Commission 

Update of the Parking 
Landscape Requirements 

 

Townshipwide Approved 

25014 Planning 
Commission 

Creation of Rooster Regulations Townshipwide Approved 

REZONINGS 

25001 Fedewa 
Holdings 

Dobie Road rezoning; 
reapplication from a previous 
denial and conditions added 

Parcel adjacent 
to the north of 
Faith Lutheran 

Church 

Approved 

25022 Continental 975 
Fund LLC Authentix Central Park 

Drive 
Not 

recommended 

SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

25003 
Okemos Local 
Investments 

Major amendment to a previous 
SUP 

4360 Hagadorn 
Road 

Approved 



P a g e  | 3 
2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

 

25004 

Radmoor 
Montessori 

 

School Expansion – Minor 
Amendment 

2745 Mount 
Hope Road Approved (Staff) 

25006 

Trusha Nayak 

 

Precious Sprouts Group Child 
Care 

 

2137 Butternut 
Drive 

 
Approved 

25007 

CWP West LLC 

 

Mister Car Wash 

 

4880 Marsh 
Road 

 

Approved 

25009 

Okemos Ace 
Hardware 

 

Ace Outdoor Sales 

 
3544 Meridian 
Crossing Drive 

Approved 

25020 

Fedewa 
Holdings 

 
Okemos Gateway LLC Dobie Road 

Approved 

25021 

St. Martha Parish 

 
St. Martha Classroom 1100 Grand 

River Avenue 
Approved 

 

COMMISSION REVIEW 

25017 

P Tripp 
Enterprises 

 

Tripp Land Division 

 

2025 M-78 

 

Approved (Staff) 

25025 
Shangri-La Real 

Estate LLC Land Preservation Donation 4344 Hagadorn 
and vacant lot 

Approved (Staff) 

25026 January Chvala Chvala Land Division 5384 Van Atta 
Road 

Approved (Staff) 

25027 Wayne Beyea Beyea Land Division 5273 Meridian 
Road 

Approved (Staff) 

WETLAND DELINEATIONS/VERIFICATIONS 



P a g e  | 4 
2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

25008 K. Fedewa 
Builders Gear Wetland Delineation 3760 Hulett 

Road 
Approved (Staff) 

25018 Haslett Holding 
LLC Copper Creek WDV 350 Haslett 

Road 
Approved (Staff) 

     

 
WETLAND USE PERMIT 

25016 

Meridian 
Township 

Public Works 
& Engineering 

Schultz Pathway 

 

2770 Bennett 
Road 

 

Approved 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

25012 Jim Giguere 
Hulett Road Estates – 

Resubmittal 

 

3560 Hulett 
Road 

 

Approved 

 
 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATIONS 

25-01 Playmakers Front Yard Setback 
5691 & 5707 
School Street 

Approved 

25-02 
Meridian 
Township 

Setback from county drains for a 
Pathway crossing Vacant Lot 

Approved 

25-03 Playmakers Repair of a nonconforming sign 
2299 W. Grand 

River 
Approved 

25-04 
David & Luanna 

Price Rear yard setback 
5952 Footman 

Drive 
Approved 

25-05 Robert Filter Side yard setback 1942 Wilder Approved 

25-06 
Norman & 

Carmen Gear 
Wetland setback 3760 Hulett 

Road 
Approved 



P a g e  | 5 
2025 Planning Commission Annual Report 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

25-07 
Meridian 
Township 

Setback from county drains for a 
Pathway crossing 

Bennett Road Approved 

25-08 
Dagher Signs & 

Graphics Variance for a second wall sign 
1982 Grand 

River 
Approved 

25-09 
James & Jana 

Stewart Front yard setback 
5130 Country 

Drive 
Approved 

25-10 Teresa Wilborn Side yard setback 
6080 Columbia 

Drive 
Approved 

25-11 Foresight Sign 
Front setback for a freestanding 

sign 4650 Moore 
Approved 

25-12 Bill Carr Signs Variance for a second wall sign 
4990 Marsh 

Road 
Denied 

 
SITE PLANS 

25005 Meijer Canopy Amendment 2055 Grand 
River 

Approved (Staff) 

25010 CWP West LLC Mister Car Wash 4880 Marsh 
Road 

Approved (Staff) 

25011 Panda Express Pande Express 4990 Marsh 
Road 

Approved (Staff) 

25015 Playmakers Playmakers Warehouse 5691, 5707 
School Street 

Approved (Staff) 

25019 Okemos Land 
Investments LLC Marihuana Retailer 4360 Hagadorn 

Road 
Withdrawn 

25023 Sam Eyde Evergreen Vet Expansion 4737 Marsh 
Road 

Approved (Staff) 

25024 St. Martha 
Parish St. Martha Classroom Expansion 

1100 Grand 
River 

Under Review 

 



9.G

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

To: Board Members 

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager 
Director of Public Works and Engineering 

Date: January 29, 2026 

Re: 2026 Concrete Repair Contract Award 

Township staff recently requested bids for the 2026 Concrete Repair Contract. Bids are solicited 
on a unit price basis. The work involves the following major bid items: 

• Approximately 18,000 SF of 4″ & 6″ Concrete Installation
• Approximately 6,250 SF of ADA Sidewalk Ramp Installation
• Approximately 6,200 FT of Curb and Gutter Removal and Installation

The low bid was from Lopez Concrete Construction LLC in an estimate amount of $612,875.00. 
Township staff recommend awarding this contract to the low bidder, Lopez Concrete Construction 
LLC. This contract held the most recent Concrete Repair Contract with the Township and 
performed high quality work on behalf of the Township. They have also held contracts, as a 
subcontractor, with the Ingham County Road Department. 

The Board approved funding for this contract across many different accounts in the 2026 
Township Budget. This contract is used for many different purposes, including ramp and curb and 
gutter spot repairs under the Local Road Program, the Order to Maintain Sidewalk Program, 
Pathway spot repairs, facility spot repairs, park spot repairs, etc. 

The contract contains an option for the Township to renew the contract for an additional two 
years (i.e. three years in total). If the Township elects to renew, the bid unit prices will be 
increased by the ENR Construction Cost Index.  

We are happy to answer any questions the Board may have. 

The following motion has been prepared for the Board’s consideration: 

MOVE TO AWARD THE 2026 CONCRETE REPAIR CONTRACT TO LOPEZ CONCRETE 
CONSTRUCTION LLC AND DIRECT THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR TO EXECUTE THE 
CONTRACT. 

Attachment: 

1. 2026 Concrete Repair Contract Bid Tab
2. 2026 Concrete Repair Contract
3. Meridian Township Standard Sidewalk and Pathway Detail Sheet

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/31214/639041568318628899
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/31216/639041570022783530


ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

1. Traffic Control 1.0 LS $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $14,790.00 $14,790.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $27,000.00 $27,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

9. Pavt, Rem, Concrete 2,500.0 SY $20.00 $50,000.00 $14.00 $35,000.00 $20.00 $50,000.00 $15.00 $37,500.00 $27.00 $67,500.00 $27.00 $67,500.00 $32.00 $80,000.00

10a. Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 5.0 EA $350.00 $1,750.00 $739.00 $3,695.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $850.00 $4,250.00 $6,215.50 $31,077.50 $1,289.00 $6,445.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00

10b. HMA Removal from Gutter Plan 300.0 FT $3.00 $900.00 $10.00 $3,000.00 $10.00 $3,000.00 $20.00 $6,000.00 $12.00 $3,600.00 $8.00 $2,400.00 $25.00 $7,500.00

21a. Manhole, Casting, Adj 20.0 EA $350.00 $7,000.00 $1,233.00 $24,660.00 $1,100.00 $22,000.00 $850.00 $17,000.00 $2,000.00 $40,000.00 $948.40 $18,968.00 $3,000.00 $60,000.00

21b. Manhole, Casting, ADA Compliant 4.0 EA $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,356.00 $5,424.00 $1,550.00 $6,200.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,485.00 $5,940.00 $1,853.00 $7,412.00 $2,000.00 $8,000.00

32a. Water, Curb Box, Adj 2.0 EA $350.00 $700.00 $838.00 $1,676.00 $450.00 $900.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $282.50 $565.00 $285.00 $570.00 $800.00 $1,600.00

32b. Water, Valve Box, Adj 10.0 EA $350.00 $3,500.00 $863.00 $8,630.00 $550.00 $5,500.00 $750.00 $7,500.00 $4,125.00 $41,250.00 $336.00 $3,360.00 $800.00 $8,000.00

40a. Concrete, 4 Inch 14,000.0 SF $6.00 $84,000.00 $7.50 $105,000.00 $7.00 $98,000.00 $6.50 $91,000.00 $5.92 $82,880.00 $8.50 $119,000.00 $12.00 $168,000.00

40b. Concrete, 6 Inch 4,000.0 SF $7.00 $28,000.00 $8.50 $34,000.00 $10.00 $40,000.00 $8.80 $35,200.00 $6.65 $26,600.00 $9.90 $39,600.00 $14.00 $56,000.00

40c. Concrete, 7 Inch 250.0 SF $8.00 $2,000.00 $9.50 $2,375.00 $12.00 $3,000.00 $10.00 $2,500.00 $7.50 $1,875.00 $10.50 $2,625.00 $15.00 $3,750.00

41a. Sidewalk Ramp, ADA 6,250.0 SF $7.00 $43,750.00 $10.50 $65,625.00 $10.00 $62,500.00 $8.80 $55,000.00 $8.00 $50,000.00 $10.25 $64,062.50 $15.00 $93,750.00

41b. Detectable Warning Surface, 7 Feet 70.0 FT $130.00 $9,100.00 $120.00 $8,400.00 $150.00 $10,500.00 $190.00 $13,300.00 $155.00 $10,850.00 $144.50 $10,115.00 $72.00 $5,040.00

41c. Detectable Warning Surface, 5 Feet 175.0 FT $130.00 $22,750.00 $120.00 $21,000.00 $100.00 $17,500.00 $190.00 $33,250.00 $145.00 $25,375.00 $144.50 $25,287.50 $72.00 $12,600.00

45a. Curb & Gutter, Rem 6,200.0 FT $18.00 $111,600.00 $14.00 $86,800.00 $25.00 $155,000.00 $15.00 $93,000.00 $14.00 $86,800.00 $12.75 $79,050.00 $18.00 $111,600.00

45b. Curb & Gutter, Inst 6,200.0 FT $26.00 $161,200.00 $31.00 $192,200.00 $32.00 $198,400.00 $38.00 $235,600.00 $33.00 $204,600.00 $42.00 $260,400.00 $45.00 $279,000.00

50a. Timber Retaining Wall, Rem 200.0 SF $7.00 $1,400.00 $28.00 $5,600.00 $25.00 $5,000.00 $20.00 $4,000.00 $21.25 $4,250.00 $25.00 $5,000.00 $5.00 $1,000.00

50b. Timber Retaining Wall, Inst 200.0 SF $70.00 $14,000.00 $75.00 $15,000.00 100 $20,000.00 80 $16,000.00 105 $21,000.00 75 $15,000.00 50 $10,000.00

51a. Wood Fence, Inst 75.0 FT $65.00 $4,875.00 $79.00 $5,925.00 $75.00 $5,625.00 $80.00 $6,000.00 $120.00 $9,000.00 $75.00 $5,625.00 $100.00 $7,500.00

51b. Aluminum Fence and Concrete Footing, Inst 25.0 FT $130.00 $3,250.00 $182.00 $4,550.00 $300.00 $7,500.00 $350.00 $8,750.00 $110.00 $2,750.00 $190.00 $4,750.00 $200.00 $5,000.00

51c. Aluminum Fence Mounted to Concrete, Inst 25.0 FT $90.00 $2,250.00 $199.00 $4,975.00 $300.00 $7,500.00 $300.00 $7,500.00 $100.00 $2,500.00 $210.00 $5,250.00 $150.00 $3,750.00

53. Riprap 75.0 SY $75.00 $5,625.00 $103.00 $7,725.00 $110.00 $8,250.00 $350.00 $26,250.00 $70.40 $5,280.00 $79.95 $5,996.25 $125.00 $9,375.00

54. Extra Restoration 1,300.0 SY $30.00 $39,000.00 $20.00 $26,000.00 $11.00 $14,300.00 $7.50 $9,750.00 $15.85 $20,605.00 $38.25 $49,725.00 $10.00 $13,000.00

55. Geotextile Separator 25.0 SY $9.00 $225.00 $32.00 $800.00 $2.50 $62.50 $50.00 $1,250.00 $25.00 $625.00 $15.25 $381.25 $20.00 $500.00

TOTAL: $612,875.00 TOTAL: $682,850.00 TOTAL: $773,737.50 TOTAL: $725,800.00 TOTAL: $771,922.50 TOTAL: $813,522.50 TOTAL: $969,965.00

Letting Date: 1/29/2026, 10.30a

  Correction from Proposal sheet:

Joe Raica Excavating
11323 S US 27

Dewitt, MI 48820

3640 Nicholson Rd

Fowlerville MI 48836

7505 E. M-71

Durand, MI 482429

Able Concrete Inc

Concrete Repair Contract 2026

Charlotte MI 48813 Lansing, MI 48906

Great Lakes Fusion
3092 Lansing Rd 16220 National Parkway

C&D Hughes Inc Leavitt & Starck 

Lansing, MI 48906Lansing, MI 48910

QTY

TL ContractingLopez Concrete 
16803 Industrial Parkway4711 Burchfield Ave



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9. H 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

Date:  January 30, 2026 

Re:  Economic Development Corporation Appointment 

  

Currently, there is a vacancy on the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) and the attached 

application has been received for review and recommendation.  

Anthony Alvarado currently owns and operates Doc’s Automotive on Jolly Road. While the location 

is in Alaiedon Township, Doc's Automotive has served the Meridian Township area for over 25 

years. Anthony is an active member of the community, currently serving as the President of the 

Meridian Area Business Association. He is an Okemos High School graduate and has expressed a 

strong interest in serving on the Meridian EDC. 

Under State law, the Supervisor, with the advice and consent of the Township Board, puts 
appointments to the EDC forth. 
 
The following motion has been prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT MADE BY SUPERVISOR HENDRICKSON OF 

ANTHONY ALVARADO TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR A 

TERM ENDING 12/31/30.            

Attachment: 

1. Public Service Application 
 

 



Submission # 4518238

IP Address 2600:1700:d4f0:4c90:9d6a:c9e7:d97:d5ae

Submission Recorded On 12/12/2025 1:26 PM

Time to Take Survey  26 minutes, 35 seconds

Page 1

* 1. I am interested in service on one or more of the following public bodies as checked below:

Economic Development Corporation

*

I am applying to the Meridian Economic Development Corporation board because I am committed to the long-term economic health of Meridian Township. As a local business
owner of Doc’s Automotive and President of the Meridian Area Business Association, I work closely with over 150 businesses to support growth, collaboration, and workforce
development. My background as a former first responder drives a service-oriented, accountable leadership approach focused on sustainable, community-aligned EDC

*

I bring hands-on business leadership experience as the owner of Doc’s Automotive and President of the Meridian Area Business Association, representing over 150 local
businesses. I have experience in strategic planning, budgeting, board governance, and workforce development. My background as a former firefighter and paramedic
reinforces disciplined decision-making, accountability, and collaboration. I am also actively pursuing leadership and business education to strengthen my experience

(Attach resume if available)

**SKIPPED**

* Full Name

Anthony Alvarado

*

Business Owner

*

Doc's Automotive

* Home Address

2702 Cahill Drive
East Lansing 48823

* Phone (Day)

517.712.2542

* Phone (Evening)

517.712.2542

*

docsauto.okemos@gmail.com

*

Anthony Alvarado

*

12/12/2025

Other than the Downtown Development Authority Board, the Corridor Improvement Authority, and the Economic Development Corporation, persons appointed to Meridian
Township boards and commissions must be a resident and elector (if of voting age) of the Township during the term of office. Excessive absences may be cause for review of
appointment. The policy for appointment of candidates to the various public service positions is based on the following criteria: desire to serve, experience, expertise,
availability of time to serve, and maintenance of equitable geographic representation. In most instances it will be desirable to develop further information through a personal
interview. This application will be retained in township files for two years.

?

2. Summarize your reasons for applying to do this type of service

3. Describe education, experience or training which will assist you if appointed.

Occupation

Place of Employment

Email

Please type your name in the box below as a digital signature

Date and Time



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. I

To: Board Members 

From: Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

Date: January 30, 2026 

Re: Michigan Townships Association-Principles of Governance 

The Michigan Townships Association (MTA) is again encouraging every township board to 
deliberate on and adopt the enclosed Principles of Governance. MTA members throughout the 
state have enthusiastically embraced these Principles as their own code of conduct. 

As a key part of the MTA’s collective commitment to fostering efficient and effective township 
government that has earned the public's trust, the MTA Board invites each board to affirm and 
practice the enclosed Principles of Governance through formal ratification at a board meeting. By 
signing this certificate, board members denote their personal pledges to adhere to the Principles.  
Following board action, the attached document will be framed and proudly posted in the Town 
Hall Room for all to see, as has been done in the past. 

The following motion has been prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE ATTACHED MICHIGAN TOWNSHIPS ASSOCIATION PRINCIPLES 

OF GOVERNANCE.           

Attachment: 

1. MTA Principles of Governance





To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Meridian Township Board  

Amber Clark Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director 

February 3, 2026 

Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan Termination of Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Township Board held a public hearing for the Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan on 
October 18, 2022. At that meeting, the Board reviewed the proposed MUPUD site plan and 
discussed several related concerns. Prior to this, the Meridian Township Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority (BRA) reviewed the Brownfield Plan and voted to recommend 
approval. The proposed plan was formally adopted by the Township Board on October 24, 
2022. 

Since adoption, the proposed 200‑unit redevelopment project has encountered multiple 
obstacles that have prevented it from achieving site plan approval. Without an approved 
site plan, the project cannot receive authorization to begin construction. Given that the 
project has not advanced, staff recommends initiating the process to terminate the Village of 
Okemos Brownfield Plan. 

Brownfield Plan Termination Process 

Public Act 90 of 2023 states that “a governing body may terminate a brownfield plan or plan 
amendment for an eligible property if the project for which eligible activities were identified in 
the brownfield plan or plan amendment fails to occur with respect to the eligible property for 
not less than 2 years following the date of the resolution approving the brownfield plan or plan 
amendment, the governing body first does both of the following: 

1. Gives 30 days’ prior written notice to the developer at its last known address by
certified mail or another delivery method that provides proof of attempted delivery.

2. Provides the developer an opportunity to be heard at a public meeting.

3. If a brownfield plan or plan amendment is terminated under subdivision (b), the
governing body may approve a new brownfield plan or plan amendment for the
eligible property under which tax increment revenues may be captured for up to the
period of time provided under section 13 (5).”

If a brownfield plan or plan amendment is terminated, the governing body may later 
approve a new brownfield plan for the eligible property under which tax increment 
revenues may again be captured for an allowable period. 

10. A & 12. A



 

 

Following the public hearing, the Township Board may vote to approve or deny the 
termination of the Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan.  

 

Discussion 

Tonight the Township Board may discuss termination of the Village of Okemos Brownfield 
Plan. It is the recommendation from the Meridian Township Brownfield Authority to 
terminate the plan, and will allow for future redevelopment of the site. The current 
brownfield plan supports a site plan that cannot be met under current conditions. 
Termination of the plan will allow for a smooth transition to a new concept plan for the site.  

 

 



Charter Township of Meridian 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
Thursday, August 14, 2025– Minutes 

Members 
Present:    Jeff Theuer, Manager Tim Dempsey, John Sarver, and Jim Houthoofd 

Members 
Absent:    Dave Ledebuhr 

Others Present:  Amber Clark Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chair Theuer called the regular meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Director Sarver moved to approve the agenda as presented. Supported by Director
Houthoofd.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
Director Brandon Brooks moved to approve the June 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes Draft.
Supported by Director Houthoofd.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

4. FINANCIAL REPORT- June
Economic Development Director Amber Clark presented the June Financial Report. She
noted that no major transactions had occurred since the last BRA meeting. She noted that it
is summer tax season and in September or October we should see the distribution of tax
capture to the BRA in fall. Director Clark had no other updates to provide.

The BRA accepted the financial report as presented.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

5. PUBLIC REMARKS- None

6. NEW  BUSINESS



 

a. Reimbursable Expenses of the BRA- Remit Payment to the General 
Fund  
Director Clark provided an overview of the memo regarding an accounting of past 
fees paid by the Township’s general fund that are expenses of the Meridian Township 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. At the time of establishment the MTBRA did 
not have a positive fund balance. The Township supplemented the necessary 
payments to consultants, staff, lawyers, etc. related to any BRA Plan and the 
administration of those plans. When all 5 proposed BRA plans began to fully capture 
on the increased values of the redeveloped properties, the BRA’s fund balance began 
to increase. In 2023 the BRA voted to reimburse the Township for all fees associated 
with the management of the BRA program. Each invoice that was previously paid for 
by the Township’s general fund was documented with the amount of the invoice. A 
total of $18,443.50 is outstanding, owed to the Township.  
 
Chair Theuer noted that the BRA elected to become a “revenue neutral” program for 
the Township. The goal to provide the BRA incentives at no cost to the Township. The 
funding captured from participating parcels should be used as efficiently as possible 
to ensure the Township is not a financial loss operating the program. Chair Theuer 
noted he is in agreement to pay the Township back what is owed for the program and 
encourages more activity to be supported by the administration fund like staff 
salaries.  
 
Manager Dempsey noted that staff had discussed utilizing a portion of the MTBRA 
administration fund to support a portion of salaries. That will be a future discussion 
of the BRA. It is common practice for a community to utilize the fund in such a way to 
have a net zero program. Manager Dempsey also thanked Director Clark for her 
efforts to release funding back to the Township considering the economic climate and 
potential budget constraints.  
 
Director Brooks asked why the Brownfield is reconciling those payments now.  
Director Clark noted that at the start of the MTBRA there was no funding available. As 
the fund balance grew the BRA began to pay for fees associate with programming. The 
fees noted in this memo start from 2018 and end 2022 when fund balance for the BRA 
was low. Now that there is a positive fund balance, fees previously paid for by the 
Township will be reimbursed back to the Township. Director Clark noted that the 
entities that provided invoices have been paid. This is an effort for the BRA to 
reimburse the Township to be revenue neutral.  
 
Member Houthoofd made the following motion: 
 
Motion to approve and authorize a reimbursement to the Township’s general fund 
for the MTBRA consulting and legal fees, to be issued from the MTBRA Administration 
funds in the amount of $18,443. 50. 
 
Moved and supported by Director Sarver. 
 



ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Chair Theuer:  YES 
Director Houthoofd: YES 
Director Sarver: YES 
Manager Dempsey: YES 
Director Brooks: YES 

ROLL CALL: Motion carried unanimously. 

b. Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan – Termination of Plan
Director Clark provided an overview of the steps to terminate the partially approved 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Plan for the proposed Village of Okemos 
project. The BRA Plan for the project was initially approved in 2022 and State law 
allows for a Plan to be terminated if 2 years has passed with no activity on the site. 
While the Township has received evidence that the project will proceed in the near 
future, the Township’s attorney’s want to be sure that the MTBRA is not liable 
related to the approved Plan if we absolve the Plan.
Director Clark noted that she is in discussion with our legal team but feel that a 
termination is a good option. Terminating the Plan will not negatively impact a future 
Plan from being approved, it does cleanly allow the Township to potentially plan a 
redevelopment of the site without being barred by the previous MUPUD and site 
concept requirements. No formal action will be taken by the BRA at this time.

c. Legal Fee Reimbursement Fahey Invoice #30655 $390.00
Chair Theuer opened the item with a general statement that the attorney fees for 
Fahey Schultz Burzych and Rhodes are paid for by the Township’s General Fund. It is 
the BRA’s policy to review the fees and reimburse the Township’s General 
Fund. Director Clark noted that body of the memo included incorrect details 
for the reimbursement. The copy included in the memo was a reproduction of the 
request to the BRA to reimburse the outstanding fees from the start of the 
BRA program. Director Clark noted that the correct invoice is attached and the 
motion maker will need to update their motion to include the correct dollar amount.
Chair Theuer noted that it would be helpful to have the legal team include specifics of 
which project they are reviewing or identified in the invoice to note the time 
spent for specific projects
Director Brooks made the following motion:

Move to approve and authorize reimbursement to the Township’s general 
fund for legal fees conducted in the service of the MTBRA in the amount of 
$390.00 



Supported by Director Sarver 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Chair Theuer:  YES 
Director Houthoofd: YES 
Director Sarver: YES 
Manager Dempsey: YES 
Director Brooks: YES 

ROLL CALL: Motion carried unanimously. 

7. OLD BUSINESS – NONE

8. PROJECT UPDATES
Director Clark provided a general project overview during the financial discussion portion
of the meeting. Director Clark had no other comments regarding projects at this time.

9. PUBLIC REMARKS –
a. Director Brooks introduced himself as the Planning Commission liaison member

most recently appointed to the MTBRA. He stated that the Planning Commission is
currently evaluating opposing/conflicting zoning areas in the Township and wanted
to know if a full comprehensive list of Brownfield sites in the Township was available. 

Chair Theuer noted that in years past the BRA desired to have a comprehensive list
made but did not have the funding to do so.  Director Brooks mentioned that the
Planning Commission would first like to know what areas to start looking and to
coordinate that in an area perhaps where a Brownfield is identified so that the site
could be looked at potentially for redevelopment.  Chair Theuer asked for staff to
include BRA parcel list in the Township on the agenda for the next meeting.

Chair Theuer called to adjourn the meeting 

10. ADJOURNMENT – 9:35 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Amber Clark 
Economic Development Director 



November 17, 2025

Attn: Pat Smith & Jonathan Branoff 
Westpac Communities 
505 Bath Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Subject:  Notification of Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan Termination 

Dear Mr. Smith, 

In 2022 Meridian Township approved a Local + State Brownfield Plan for the approved MUPUD, 
200 unit redevelopment commonly referred to as “the Village of Okemos”. The approved Plan 
requires the support of School Education Tax dollars to support the requested $6.7M in Brownfield 
eligible costs. That Plan was never submitted to the Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
and the additional costs were never approved for support through the State. As of now, the 
approved Plan would not support the necessary improvements.  

Public Act 90 of 2023 allows a municipality to terminate a Brownfield Plan that has not 
commenced construction, two years since approval. The Township would like to discuss publicly 
with the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the potential to terminate the 2022 approved 
Brownfield Plan. Terminating the approved Plan will not negatively impact a future request to 
support redevelopment of this site through Brownfield Tax Increment Financing. The termination 
of the current Plan will allow for an easier Brownfield approval process in the future as the current 
proposal support a redevelopment project that is not currently financially feasible. The letter we 
received from your offices in 2024, indicate the approved project is on indefinite hold.  

The Township must first determine if they would like to discuss terminating the Brownfield Plan. 
Notification by certified mail must be submitted to the developer with a date and time of the public 
meeting. At the public meeting the developer can provide comments related to the termination of 
the Plan. As the Brownfield Plans are approved by the Township Board, only the Township Board 
can terminate an approved Plan. 

We want to emphasize again that terminating the current Plan does not negatively jeopardize any 
future request for support through Brownfield for this site. If you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact me at 517.853.4568 or Clark@meridian.mi.us.  

Sincerely, 

Amber Clark 
Meridian Township 
Economic Development Director 

mailto:Clark@meridian.mi.us


December 29, 202

Attn: Pat Smith & Jonathan Branoff 
Westpac Communities 
505 Bath Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Subject:  Notification of Village of Okemos Brownfield Plan Termination 

Dear Mr. Smith, 

In 2022 Meridian Township approved a Local + State Brownfield Plan for the approved MUPUD, 
200 unit redevelopment commonly referred to as “the Village of Okemos”. The approved Plan 
requires the support of School Education Tax dollars to support the requested $6.7M in Brownfield 
eligible costs. That Plan was never submitted to the Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
and the additional costs were never approved for support through the State. As of now, the 
approved Plan would not support the necessary improvements.  

Public Act 57 of 2018 allows a municipality to terminate a Brownfield Plan that has not 
commenced construction, two years since approval. The Township would like to discuss publicly 
with the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the potential to terminate the 2022 approved 
Brownfield Plan. Terminating the approved Plan will not negatively impact a future request to 
support redevelopment of this site through Brownfield Tax Increment Financing. The termination 
of the current Plan will allow for an easier Brownfield approval process in the future as the current 
proposal support a redevelopment project that is not currently financially feasible. The letter we 
received from your offices in 2024, indicate the approved project is on indefinite hold.  

The Township Board must first determine if they would like to discuss terminating the Brownfield 
Plan. The Township Board has set the public hearing to discuss the termination of the Village of 
Okemos Brownfield Plan for February 3, 2026.  At the public meeting you may provide comments 
related to the termination of the Plan. As the Brownfield Plans are approved by the Township 
Board, only the Township Board can terminate an approved Plan.  

We want to emphasize again that terminating the current Plan does not negatively jeopardize any 
future request for support through Brownfield for this site. If you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact me at 517.853.4568 or Clark@meridian.mi.us.  

Sincerely, 

Amber Clark 
Meridian Township 
Economic Development Director 

mailto:Clark@meridian.mi.us






11. A

To: Board Members 

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager 
Director of Public Works & Engineering 

Younes Ishraidi, Township Engineer 
Deputy Director of Public Works & Engineering 

Date: January 21, 2026 

Re: Sanctuary #2 Public Streetlighting Improvement 
Special Assessment District #430 – Resolution #1 & #2 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

A request was received from the property owner of Sanctuary #2 for maintenance of streetlights 
within the Sanctuary #2 plat. The developer of the Sanctuary #2 plat paid Consumers Energy to 
install four (4) 46-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard 
fiberglass poles along Crane Circle. This streetlight special assessment district (SAD) will fund the 
ongoing maintenance and electrical service cost of the streetlights. 

Resolution #1 orders plans to be prepared showing the improvement, the location, and the estimate 
of cost.  Resolution #2 files the plans and cost estimate with the Clerk’s Office and declares the 
Township Board's intention to make the improvements and tentatively designates a special 
assessment district and sets a public hearing on Tuesday, March 3, 2026, for hearing objections to 
the improvement, cost estimate, and assessment district. 

The proposed first year cost for streetlighting in Sanctuary #2 is $1,457.76 ($208.25/lot) and the 
cost annually thereafter will be $728.88 ($104.13/lot) (subject to adjustment). 

Proposed Motion: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE SANCTUARY #2 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #430 – RESOLUTION #1, ORDERING PLANS TO BE 
PREPARED SHOWING THE STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT, LOCATION, AND 
ESTIMATE OF COST; AND RESOLUTION #2, FILING THE PLANS SHOWING THE 
IMPROVEMENT, LOCATION AND ESTIMATE OF COST WITH THE CLERK'S OFFICE, 
TENTATIVELY DECLARING INTENTION TO MAINTAIN FOUR (4) 46-WATT LED 
STREETLIGHTS WITH TRADITIONAL FIXTURES WITH CUT-OFF, AND STANDARD 
FIBERGLASS POLES AND DEFRAY THE COST OF MAINTENANCE BY SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE 7 BENEFITING LOTS, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2026. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution #1
2. Resolution #2



 

 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Memo to Township Board 
January 21, 2026 
Re: Sanctuary #2 Public Streetlighting Improvement Special Assessment District #430 – 
Resolution #1 & #2 
 

3. Resolution #2 Notice of Hearing 
4. Resolution #2 Notice of Hearing Affidavit of Mailing 
5. Proposed Assessment Roll 
6. Authorization for change in standard lighting contract form 547 
7. Prints 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



SANCTUARY #2 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 430 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1 

 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864-1198, Phone (517) 
853-4000, on Tuesday, February 3, 2026 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:             
 
              
 
ABSENT:             
 
 The following resolution was offered by          
 
and supported by           . 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, 
acting on a request from property owners of Sanctuary #2 and on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, deems it advisable and necessary for the public health, safety, and 
welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to operate and maintain streetlights in Sanctuary #2 to service 
the proposed special assessment district area described as: 
 

Lots 1 through 7 (inclusive), Sanctuary #2; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public streetlighting improvement consists of maintaining four (4) 46-watt LED 
streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Crane Circle; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed with this public streetlighting improvement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The Township’s Director of Public Works & Engineering is hereby ordered to prepare plans showing 

the improvements, the location thereof and estimates of the cost thereof, pursuant to the project as 
previously set forth in this resolution. 

 
 YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
                 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of proceedings taken 
by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, February 3, 2026. 
 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________________________ 
      Angela Demas, Township Clerk 



SANCTUARY #2 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 430 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2 

 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864-
1198, Phone (517) 853-4000, on Tuesday, February 3, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 PRESENT:            
              
 ABSENT:            
 
 The following resolution was offered by        
and supported by           . 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian deems it advisable and 
necessary for the public health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to operate and 
maintain the following described public streetlighting improvements: 
 
 Operate and maintain four (4) 46-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures 

with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Crane Circle; 
 
and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefitted 
thereby. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board has caused to be prepared by the Township’s Director of 
Public Works & Engineering, plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of 
the cost thereof; in accordance with a resolution of the Township Board pursuant to Act 188, Public 
Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the same has been received by the Township Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed further with the improvements; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of the cost thereof 
be filed with the Township Clerk and be available for public examination. 
 
2. The Township Board tentatively declares its intention to make the following public 
streetlighting   improvements: operate and maintain four (4) 46-watt LED streetlights with 
Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Crane Circle. 
 
3. There is hereby tentatively designated a special assessment district against which the cost of 
said improvement is to be assessed, consisting of the lots and parcels of land described as: 
 

Lots 1 through 7 (inclusive), Sanctuary #2 



 
4. The Township Board shall meet in the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh 

Road, Okemos, MI on Tuesday, March 3, 2026 at 6:00 p.m. at which time and place the 
Township Board will hear objections to the improvement and to the special assessment 
district therefore.  All objections must be filed in writing. 

 
5. The Township Clerk is hereby ordered to cause notice of such hearing and the fact that the 

Township Board is proceeding on its own initiative to be published twice prior to said hearing 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township, the first publication to be at least ten 
(10) days before the time of the hearing, and pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1954, as amended, shall cause said notice to be mailed by first class mail to all record owners 
of, or parties in interest in, property in the special assessment district, at the addresses shown 
on the current tax records of the Township, at least ten (10) full days before the date of said 
hearing. 

 
6. Said notice shall be in substantially the following form:  (See Attached) 
 
7. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 
 
ADOPTED: 
 
 YEAS:  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 NAYS:  __________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
 Resolution declared adopted. 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
                   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of proceedings 
taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, February 3, 2026. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________________________ 
      Angela Demas, Township Clerk 



SANCTUARY #2 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 430 

 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
TO THE RECORD OWNERS OF, OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN, THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 
CONSTITUTING THE PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Lots 1 through 7 (inclusive), Sanctuary #2 
 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, acting 
on a request from property owners of Sanctuary #2 and on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, has determined to make the following described public 
streetlighting improvement: 
 
 Operate, and maintain four (4) 46-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-

off, and standard fiberglass poles along Crane Circle; 
 
and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefitted 
thereby. 
 
Plans and estimates have been prepared and are on file with the Township Clerk for public 
examination. 
 
 TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Township Board will meet Tuesday, March 3, 2026, at 6:00 
p.m. at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan  48864-
1198, for the purpose of hearing objections to the improvement and the special assessment district 
therefore. The Township Board is also interested in hearing those that favor the proposed project. 
 
Appearance and protest at the hearing in the special assessment proceedings is required in order to 
appeal the amount of the special assessment to the state tax tribunal. Your personal appearance at the 
hearing is not required, but you or your agent may appear in person at the hearing and protest the 
special assessment. To make an appearance and protest, you must file your written objections by 
letter or other writing with the Township Clerk before the close of this hearing. The owner or any 
person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of the special assessment with 
the state tax tribunal with 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll if that person 
appeared and protested the special assessment at this hearing. 
 
The Township Board may proceed with the improvement and special assessment district unless 
written objections from more than 20% of the property owners are filed with the Township Board at 
or before the hearing. 
 
"FOR PURPOSES OF THIS HEARING, THE AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY 
IS ESTIMATED TO BE:   First Year Cost: $208.25/Lot 
    Annual Thereafter: $104.13/Lot 
 
 
 
Dated: ________________________    _____________________________________________________ 
       Angela Demas, Township Clerk 
       CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 



Sanctuary #2 Public Streetlighting Improvements 
Special Assessment District #430 

Resolution 2 Hearing Notice 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 ) s.s. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Michigan, 

Ingham County, Michigan, depose and say that I personally prepared for mailing and mailed by first 

class mail, on _________________  _____, 2026 a notice of hearing, a true copy of which is attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, to each property owner of or party in interest in property located within the 

special assessment district described in the attached notice, whose name appears upon the last local 

tax assessment records for ad valorem tax purposes, which has been reviewed by the local board of 

review as supplemented by any subsequent changes in the names or the addresses of such owners 

or parties listed thereon; that I personally checked each envelope against the list of such owners or 

parties in interest shown by said tax assessment roll and that each envelope was properly addressed 

to each owner or party in interest as shown on said tax assessment roll; that each such envelope had 

contained therein the appropriate notice of the aforesaid hearing, was securely sealed, with postage 

fully prepaid thereon for first-class delivery, and was properly addressed; that I personally placed all 

of said envelopes in a United States Post Office receptacle in Okemos, Michigan, on said date; that said 

notice referred to a hearing scheduled for Tuesday, March 3, 2026 before the Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this ____ day of 

________________________, 2026. 

 

   
 Angela Demas, Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 __________ 
 
                                                  ______ , Notary Public 
Acting in Ingham County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:   



SANCTUARY #2 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTIN IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 430 

 
 

ASSESSMENT ROLL 
 
Lot 1 through 7 (inclusive), Sanctuary #2. 
 
Legal Description/   Property Owner  First Year  Annually  
Address         & Address   Cost   Thereafter  
33-02-02-32-427-008 (Lot 1)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13 
3720 Crane Circle   3720 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-007 (Lot 2)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13    
3726 Crane Circle   3726 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-006 (Lot 3)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13    
3732 Crane Circle   3732 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-005 (Lot 4)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13 
3738 Crane Circle   3738 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-004 (Lot 5)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13 
3735 Crane Circle   3735 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-003 (Lot 6)  James Giguere   $208.25    $104.13 
3729 Crane Circle   3729 Crane Circle 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-32-427-002 (Lot 7)  Dondapati, Kiran &   $208.25    $104.13 
3725 Crane Circle    Tejaswi Kakarla       
     2628 Morning Glory Drive 
     Okemos, MI 48864 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(Subject to annual increases) 



Form 547 11-2014 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR CHANGE IN STANDARD LIGHTING 

CONTRACT(COMPANY-OWNED) FORM 547  

  

 

Contract Number: 103025042856 

Consumers Energy Company is authorized as of _________________ by the Township of MERIDIAN, to 

make changes, as listed below, in the lighting system(s) covered by the existing Standard Lighting 

Contract between the Company and the Township of MERIDIAN, dated 1/6/2016. 

 

Lighting Type: General Unmetered Light Emitting Diode Lighting Rate GU-LED 

 

Except for the changes in the lighting system(s) as herein authorized, all provisions of the aforesaid 

Standard Lighting Contract dated 1/6/2016 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Notification Number(s):  1063687363 

Comments:  

Township of MERIDIAN 

By: ____________________________________________ 

(Signature) 

____________________________________________ 

(Printed) 

Its: ____________________________________________ 

(Title) 

This Agreement may be executed and delivered in counterparts, including by a facsimile or an 

electronic transmission thereof, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any document 

generated by the parties with respect to this Agreement, including this Agreement, may be imaged 

and stored electronically and introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if original business 

records. Neither party will object to the admissibility of such images as evidence in any proceeding 

on account of having been stored electronically.    



Form 547 11-2014 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

RESOLVED, that it is hereby deemed advisable to authorize Consumers Energy Company to make 

changes in the lighting service as provided in the Standard Lighting Contract between the Company 

and the Township of MERIDIAN, dated 1/6/2016, in accordance with the Authorization for Change in 

Standard Lighting Contract dated _________________, 

 

heretofore submitted to and considered by this  ☐ commission ☐ council ☐ board; and 

RESOLVED, further, that the _______________________ Clerk be and are authorized to execute such 

authorization for change on the behalf of the Township. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF INGHAM 

 

I, _______________________, clerk of the Township of MERIDIAN do hereby certify that the foregoing 

resolution was duly adopted by the 

 

☐ commission ☐ council ☐ board of said municipality, at the meeting held on ___________________. 

 

 

___________________________ 

Dated: 

____________________ 

Municipal Customer Type: Township 

  



Form 547 11-2014 
 

 

 

GENERAL UNMETERED LIGHT EMITTING DIODE LIGHTING RATE GU-LED 

 

• (4) 46 watt LED Post Top Traditional to Install at location junco dr b/w lots 1 & corner 

junco dr b/w lots 2 & 3 

junco dr b/w lots 4 & 5 

junco dr b/w lots 6 & 7; 

 

 

 





11. B

To: Board Members 

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager 
Director of Public Works & Engineering 

Younes Ishraidi, Township Engineer 
Deputy Director of Public Works & Engineering 

Date: January 22, 2026 

Re: Sierra Ridge #4 Public Streetlighting Improvement 
Special Assessment District #431 – Resolution #1 & #2 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

A request was received from the developer of Sierra Ridge #4 for maintenance of streetlights within 
the Sierra Ridge #4 plat. The developer of the Sierra Ridge #4 plat paid Consumers Energy to install 
four (4) 47-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles 
along Fresno Lane. This streetlight special assessment district (SAD) will fund the ongoing 
maintenance and electrical service cost of the streetlights. 

Resolution #1 orders plans to be prepared showing the improvement, the location, and the estimate 
of cost.  Resolution #2 files the plans and cost estimate with the Clerk’s Office and declares the 
Township Board's intention to make the improvements and tentatively designates a special 
assessment district and sets a public hearing on Tuesday, March 3, 2026, for hearing objections to 
the improvement, cost estimate, and assessment district. 

The proposed first year cost for streetlighting in Sierra Ridge #4 is $1,457.76 ($104.13/lot) and the 
cost annually thereafter will be $728.88 ($52.06/lot) (subject to adjustment). 

Proposed Motion: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE SIERRA RIDGE #4 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #431 – RESOLUTION #1, ORDERING PLANS TO BE 
PREPARED SHOWING THE STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT, LOCATION, AND 
ESTIMATE OF COST; AND RESOLUTION #2, FILING THE PLANS SHOWING THE 
IMPROVEMENT, LOCATION AND ESTIMATE OF COST WITH THE CLERK'S OFFICE, 
TENTATIVELY DECLARING INTENTION TO MAINTAIN FOUR (4) 47-WATT LED 
STREETLIGHTS WITH TRADITIONAL FIXTURES WITH CUT-OFF, AND STANDARD 
FIBERGLASS POLES AND DEFRAY THE COST OF MAINTENANCE BY SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE 14 BENEFITING LOTS, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2026. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution #1
2. Resolution #2



 

 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Memo to Township Board 
January 22, 2026 
Re: Sierra Ridge #4 Public Streetlighting Improvement Special Assessment District #431 – 
Resolution #1 & #2 
 

3. Resolution #2 Notice of Hearing 
4. Resolution #2 Notice of Hearing Affidavit of Mailing 
5. Proposed Assessment Roll 
6. Authorization for change in standard lighting contract form 547 
7. Prints 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



SIERRA RIDGE #4 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 431 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1 

 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864-1198, Phone (517) 
853-4000, on Tuesday, February 3, 2026 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:             
 
              
 
ABSENT:             
 
 The following resolution was offered by          
 
and supported by           . 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, 
acting on a request from property owners of Sierra Ridge #4 and on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, deems it advisable and necessary for the public health, safety, and 
welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to operate and maintain streetlights in Sierra Ridge #4 to service 
the proposed special assessment district area described as: 
 

Sierra Ridge #4, Lots 70 through 83 (inclusive); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public streetlighting improvement consists of maintaining four (4) 47-watt LED 
streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Fresno Lane; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed with this public streetlighting improvement; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The Township’s Director of Public Works & Engineering is hereby ordered to prepare plans showing 

the improvements, the location thereof and estimates of the cost thereof, pursuant to the project as 
previously set forth in this resolution. 

 
 YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
                 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of proceedings taken 
by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, February 3, 2026. 
 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________________________ 
      Angela Demas, Township Clerk 



SIERRA RIDGE #4 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 431 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2 

 
 
 At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, held at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864-
1198, Phone (517) 853-4000, on Tuesday, February 3, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 PRESENT:            
              
 ABSENT:            
 
 The following resolution was offered by        
and supported by           . 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian deems it advisable and 
necessary for the public health, safety, and welfare of the Township and its inhabitants to operate and 
maintain the following described public streetlighting improvements: 
 
 Operate and maintain four (4) 47-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures 

with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Fresno Lane; 
 
and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefitted 
thereby. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board has caused to be prepared by the Township’s Director of 
Public Works & Engineering, plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of 
the cost thereof; in accordance with a resolution of the Township Board pursuant to Act 188, Public 
Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the same has been received by the Township Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to proceed further with the improvements; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The plans showing the improvement and location thereof and an estimate of the cost thereof 
be filed with the Township Clerk and be available for public examination. 
 
2. The Township Board tentatively declares its intention to make the following public 
streetlighting   improvements: operate and maintain four (4) 47-watt LED streetlights with 
Traditional fixtures with cut-off, and standard fiberglass poles along Fresno Lane. 
 
3. There is hereby tentatively designated a special assessment district against which the cost of 
said improvement is to be assessed, consisting of the lots and parcels of land described as: 
 

Lots 70 through 83 (inclusive), Sierra Ridge #4 



 
4. The Township Board shall meet in the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh 

Road, Okemos, MI on Tuesday, March 3, 2026 at 6:00 p.m. at which time and place the 
Township Board will hear objections to the improvement and to the special assessment 
district therefore.  All objections must be filed in writing. 

 
5. The Township Clerk is hereby ordered to cause notice of such hearing and the fact that the 

Township Board is proceeding on its own initiative to be published twice prior to said hearing 
in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township, the first publication to be at least ten 
(10) days before the time of the hearing, and pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1954, as amended, shall cause said notice to be mailed by first class mail to all record owners 
of, or parties in interest in, property in the special assessment district, at the addresses shown 
on the current tax records of the Township, at least ten (10) full days before the date of said 
hearing. 

 
6. Said notice shall be in substantially the following form:  (See Attached) 
 
7. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 
 
ADOPTED: 
 
 YEAS:  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 NAYS:  __________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
 Resolution declared adopted. 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
                   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of proceedings 
taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on Tuesday, February 3, 2026. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________________________ 
      Angela Demas, Township Clerk 



SIERRA RIDGE #4 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 431 

 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
TO THE RECORD OWNERS OF, OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN, THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 
CONSTITUTING THE PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT: 
 

Lots 70 through 83 (inclusive), Sierra Ridge #4 
 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, acting 
on a request from property owners of Sierra Ridge #4 and on its own initiative, pursuant to Act 188, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended, has determined to make the following described public 
streetlighting improvement: 
 
 Operate, and maintain four (4) 47-watt LED streetlights with Traditional fixtures with cut-

off, and standard fiberglass poles along Fresno Lane; 
 
and to defray the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefitted 
thereby. 
 
Plans and estimates have been prepared and are on file with the Township Clerk for public 
examination. 
 
 TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Township Board will meet Tuesday, March 3, 2026, at 6:00 
p.m. at the Meridian Township Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan  48864-
1198, for the purpose of hearing objections to the improvement and the special assessment district 
therefore. The Township Board is also interested in hearing those that favor the proposed project. 
 
Appearance and protest at the hearing in the special assessment proceedings is required in order to 
appeal the amount of the special assessment to the state tax tribunal. Your personal appearance at the 
hearing is not required, but you or your agent may appear in person at the hearing and protest the 
special assessment. To make an appearance and protest, you must file your written objections by 
letter or other writing with the Township Clerk before the close of this hearing. The owner or any 
person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of the special assessment with 
the state tax tribunal with 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll if that person 
appeared and protested the special assessment at this hearing. 
 
The Township Board may proceed with the improvement and special assessment district unless 
written objections from more than 20% of the property owners are filed with the Township Board at 
or before the hearing. 
 
"FOR PURPOSES OF THIS HEARING, THE AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY 
IS ESTIMATED TO BE:   First Year Cost: $104.13/Lot 
    Annual Thereafter: $52.06/Lot 
 
 
 
Dated: ________________________    _____________________________________________________ 
       Angela Demas, Township Clerk 
       CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 



Sierra Ridge #4 Public Streetlighting Improvements 
Special Assessment District #431 

Resolution 2 Hearing Notice 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 ) s.s. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Charter Township of Michigan, 

Ingham County, Michigan, depose and say that I personally prepared for mailing and mailed by first 

class mail, on _________________  _____, 2026 a notice of hearing, a true copy of which is attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, to each property owner of or party in interest in property located within the 

special assessment district described in the attached notice, whose name appears upon the last local 

tax assessment records for ad valorem tax purposes, which has been reviewed by the local board of 

review as supplemented by any subsequent changes in the names or the addresses of such owners 

or parties listed thereon; that I personally checked each envelope against the list of such owners or 

parties in interest shown by said tax assessment roll and that each envelope was properly addressed 

to each owner or party in interest as shown on said tax assessment roll; that each such envelope had 

contained therein the appropriate notice of the aforesaid hearing, was securely sealed, with postage 

fully prepaid thereon for first-class delivery, and was properly addressed; that I personally placed all 

of said envelopes in a United States Post Office receptacle in Okemos, Michigan, on said date; that said 

notice referred to a hearing scheduled for Tuesday, March 3, 2026 before the Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this ____ day of 

________________________, 2026. 

 

   
 Angela Demas, Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 __________ 
 
                                                  ______ , Notary Public 
Acting in Ingham County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:   



SIERRA RIDGE #4 PUBLIC STREETLIGHTIN IMPROVEMENT 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 431 

 
ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 
Lot 70 through 83 (inclusive), Sierra Ridge #4. 
 
Legal Description/   Property Owner  First Year  Annually  
Address         & Address   Cost   Thereafter  
33-02-02-04-401-008 (Lot 70) Bhuller, Sidra and   $104.13    $52.06 
6109 Fresno Lane   Siddique, Asif 

6109 Fresno Lane 
     East Lansing, MI 48823 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-009 (Lot 71) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06   
6111 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-010 (Lot 72) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06  
6113 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-011 (Lot 73) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6115 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-012 (Lot 74) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6117 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-013 (Lot 75) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6119 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-014 (Lot 76) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6121 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-015 (Lot 77) Hulbanni, Mallikarjuna  $104.13    $52.06 
6123 Fresno Lane   and Shilpa 

6123 Fresno Lane 
     East Lansing, MI 48823 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-401-016 (Lot 78) Hulbanni, Sharada  $104.13    $52.06  
6125 Fresno Lane   6125 Fresno Lane 
     East Lansing, MI 48823 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 



33-02-02-04-403-001 (Lot 79) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6120 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-403-002 (Lot 80) Presutti, John and Patricia $104.13    $52.06 
6118 Fresno Lane   6118 Fresno Lane 
     East Lansing, MI 48823 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-403-003 (Lot 81) Redwine, Carmen and  $104.13    $52.06 
6116 Fresno Lane   Cleavon 

6116 Fresno Lane 
     East Lansing, MI 48823 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-403-004 (Lot 82) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6114 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
33-02-02-04-403-005 (Lot 83) G S Fedewa Builders Inc $104.13    $52.06 
6112 Fresno Lane   6099 E Lake Drive 
     Haslett, MI 48840 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
(Subject to annual increases) 









1TT

117'

1TT 4D

10 62'

1TT1TT

4D 4C

10 11'

4241

1TT1TT

4C 4C

10 10

4D 3'

1TT1TT

4C 10

120'

1018'

1TT

1TT

96'

1TT 4C

17'

P440'

P4

40'

4D

4D

10

4D

10

17'

17'
1TT 4C

17'

1TT 4C

P4

P4

P4

P4

P4 P4

4D

125'

1TT

138'
10

18'

1TT

1TT

84'

4243 10

10

4C

4C

1TT

1TT

3'

10

10

4C

4C

1TT

1TT

22'

10

4C

1TT

1TT

1TT

67'

1TT1TT1TT

145'

10

1TT

1TT

1TT

109'

1033'

10 4C 1TTP4P4P4P4 1TT 4C 10 17'
40'

10 4C 1TT2'

1TT4C15'
10

9'

1TT

198'

4C

100'

574

90'

3TT

3
3

6
+

1
/
0

N
B

1
5
2
'

50-4

45-4
6281 UG

J

J

45-4

J

UG

2
8

3
'

1
9

6
'

50-4
J

50-4

J

50-3
J

2
0

4
'

1
5

4
'

2T
X

6219

6217

35-6

S2E PARK LAKE RD
LAKE LANSING RD
LCP 310 - LBG
SOURCE: 

M

2
8

3
'

45-4
J

50X
4245

25X
4244

50'1TT

40'2-1TT

3' 4C 3-1TT

90' 1TT4C

119' 1TT

112' 1TT

40'

3'4-4C

100'2-4C

100'

2-4C

100'

4C

111'

4C

50X
4246

2-1TT

2-1TT

100'

1TT4C

4TX

85'

4TX

85'

 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

10

50-4

3
3

6
+
1
/
0

N
B

2
5
3
'

J

J

50

578

 1 

REMOVE

PTP, S8S, (2)SP5

INSTALL

65
578

SLACK

4+NB 75'

1PH/3PH

4
+

N
B

1
P

H
/3

P
H

4
+

N
B

1
P

H
/3

P
H

6.4KVA

34'

CL

24'

CL

 2 

REMOVE

PRI VDE, FG INS

INSTALL

 3 

REMOVE

INSTALL

10KVA XFMR

(2)LCOM, (2)LA, (2)CO

(2)PRI DE, NEUT WR

 4 

INSTALL

 5 

INSTALL

  D=5' (EXISTING)

  FIGURE 23-140-1 DETAIL A

S8S, (2)SP5

  D=11' (EXISTING)

  FIGURE 23-140-1 DETAIL A

S8S, (2)SP5

REPLACE

 6 

REMOVE

S8S, SP5

INSTALL

  

  D=11' (EXISTING)

  FIGURE 23-140-1 DETAIL A

PTP, S8S, (2)SP5

19.6KVA

13.9KVA

25Z

3105

 7 

REMOVE

11K-P-RS

(2)WR

S8S, SP5

INSTALL

4
+

S
N

/4
+

N
B

1
P

H
/3

P
H

 8 

5
6

'
4
+

N
B

10/25X
3103

110'

4TX

REMOVE

11K-P}-17'-RT

11K-P

(3)SEC WR

XFMR ASSY

D8S, PRI DE

INSTALL

 9 

INSTALL

  FIGURE 22-101-15

11K-P   }-25'-RT

11K-FG-P

  D=18'

  FIGURE 23-150-1

S8FGDE, (3)PRI DE, NEUT DE

50-2

ESIC-OHL

INSTALL
ESIC-UGL

  BORE ACROSS ROAD 

90' 3-2/C-1/0AL

 

  LCP LABEL 536-65

  (3)LA, COMP GRND

  RISER BRACKET

  S8S, (3)SA, (3)CO

  FIGURE 63-31-1

3PH RISER ASSY

24'

CL
100'

1TT

2-4C

141'

4C78'

10

18'

1018'

10

18'

10

18'

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77
78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87
88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

2-10

10

10

13'

1TT

17'

4-P4

2-1TT

40'

4-P4

1TT

1TT 17'

M

M

M

M

M

M

M3'1TT

10

L47

  4+NB FOR SLACK SPAN

NOTE: REPLACE EXISTING

 

  STRINGING SAG 3'7"

  (5)SP8

  FIGURE 23-153-1

3PH SLACK SPAN

26'

CL

50-2

OR REMOVED FOR PRIMARY

TREE TO BE TRIMMED

L47

VF:5.41

VD:3.42

VF:4.65

VD:3.40

VF:4.75

VD:2.95

L47

L47

64'
CL

10

INSTALL

(3)1/0AL ELBOWS

10A

100

2
2
3
1

  

  CHECK GRND

  TAP TO Y PHASE

  FIGURE 26-101-1 DETAIL C

LA (POLE MOUNT)

LCOM/FGCOM, CO

25
3104

X/Y

M

N
E

W
T

O
N
 

R
D

(
6
6
'
 

R
O

W
)

N
E

W
T

O
N
 

R
D

N
E

W
T

O
N
 

R
D

FRESNO LN

(
6
6
'
 
R

O
W
)

F
R
E
S

N
O
 
L

N

M
O

D
E
S

T
O
 

D
R

F
R

E
S

N
O
 

L
N

S
A

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
O
 

W
A

Y

S
L

E
E

P
Y
 

H
O

L
L

O
W
 

L
N

11

12

13

16

17

18

19

4
'

4'

4
'

  

NOTE: SPLICE PRIMARY

 

  FIGURE 23-241-1

FGSB

  CHECK GRND

  MOUNT AT 30'

  25KVA XFMR, LA

  FGCOM, CO

  FIGURE 26-101-1 DETAIL C

XFMR ASSY

  D=18' (EXISTING)

  FIGURE 23-140-1 DETAIL A

PTP, S8S, (2)SP5, NEUT WR

ESIC-UGL

10B

SEE ONE LINE SHEET 2

SWITCHING OPERATION

ESIC-UGL

11

13

16 17 18 19

INSTALL

INSTALL

INSTALL

  FIGURE 42-215-2

  POST TOP FIXTURE

47W LED TRADITIONAL CUTOFF

  FIGURE 42-211-1

14' FG BLACK STLT POLE

12

INSTALL

E 
SAGI

NAW 
HWY 9

0
'

CL

5

5

5

5

SEE ONE LINE ON SHEET 02

FRONT SWITCH. 

DOWN NEWTON RD AND RUN INTO EXISTING DEAD

PER LVDP, NEED TO EXTEND 3 PHASE PRIMARY

 

 

FOR NEXT PHASE OF SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT.

CUSTOMER REQUESTED JOINT UNDERGROUND LINES

 

SCOPE OF WORK:

MISSDIGSystem,Inc.
1-800-482-7171

R

PROPERTY IRON

TRENCH

12"

DETAIL A

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

4
'

ROAD R/W LINE

1
0

' 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

3"

1
2

"

12"

TELEPHONE

& CATV

PEDESTALS

T
R

E
N

C
H

W
ID

T
H

V
A

R
IE

S

REFER TO STANDARDS SEC.66

FOR TRANSFORMER PAD DETAILS

TRANSFORMER

BOX PAD

PL

SECONDARY

JUNCTION

WHERE REQ'D

CL CL

INSTALL GROUND ROD

ON LOT LINE SIDE OF TRANSFORMER.

CPCO, TEL. CO, & CATV

TO BOND TO GROUND ROD.

TYPICAL PADMOUNT TRANSFORMER INSTALLATION

PEDESTAL 3
'

3
'

ELECTRIC DESIGN BASIS

 1. Plan for homes in range            SF.2300-3500

 3. Plan for     ton A/C for each homestead.  3 

10 2. For demand assume    kva for each homestead.

- ECNC STL: SUBDIVISION STREETLIGHTS
 
- ECNC JLN: SUBDIVISION LINES AND XFMRS
 
- ESIC UGL: RISER AND UG ROAD CROSSING
 
- ESIC OHL: OVERHEAD WORK ALONG NEWTON RD
 
MULTIPLE NOTIFICATIONS/ORDERS:

OF PROPOSED DOWN GUY.
SOUTH SIDE OF POLE BECAUSE
REPLACE XFMR AND INSTALL ON

  LCP LABEL 578-100

  FIGURE 25-314-1

(3)SA, (3)CO, (3)100A FUSE

S10S, (6)PRI DE

  FIGURE 22-101-15

11K-P   }-20'-RT

11K-FG-P

  INST ON SOUTH SIDE OF POLE

  CHECK GRND

  10KVA XFMR, LA

  FGCOM, CO

  FIGURE 26-101-1 DETAIL C

XFMR ASSY

  FIGURE 23-150-1

(3)PRI DE, NEUT DE

  D=9' (EXISTING)

  FIGURE 23-153-1

D8S, (3)SP5, NEUT DE

  FIGURE 23-241-1

FGSB 

  COMP GRND

  MOUNT AT 30'

  25KVA XFMR, LA

  FGCOM, CO

  FIGURE 26-101-1 DETAIL C

XFMR ASSY

  D=18' (EXISTING)

(2)NEUT DE

  FIGURE 23-140-1 DETAIL A

PTP, S8S, (2)SP5

TRANSFER

OH SERVICE

SEE ONE LINE ON SHEET 02

4244 4245

LOADS
TRANSFORMER

XFMR

43.14(KVA)
LOAD

4246

43.1423.34

L
O

T
S

96

95

94

87

86

85

84

83

82

93

92

91

90

89

88

OUTAGES REQUIRED ALONG NEWTON RD

6219 NEWTON RD

TLM3103

TLM3105

6217 NEWTON RD

TLM3103

EXISTING

PROPOSED

DROP

VOLTAGE
FLICKER

DEMAND LOAD (KVA) 

TRANSFORMER
LOAD

MOTOR

EXISTING

PROPOSED

DROP

VOLTAGE
FLICKER

DEMAND LOAD (KVA) 

TRANSFORMER
LOAD

MOTOR

14.94 12.87 27.27 2 TON

5.12 6.27 13.90 2 TON

12.41 8.65 27.27 2 TON

5.37 4.65 19.60 2 TON

 2.

Three-phase power service

Combination lighting and power service

Single-phase service

Three-phase power secondary

Combination light and power secondary

Single-phase secondary

Three-phase primary

Open wye primary

Single-phase primary

CONDUIT

10.

 9.

 8.

 7.

 6.

 5.

 4.

 3.

 1.

UNDERGROUND LEGEND

2"Plastic 3"Plastic 4"Plastic 6"Plastic

2"Steel 3"Steel 4"Steel 5"Steel

P2 P3 P4 P6

S2 S3 S4 S5 6"SteelS6

T TT

CONDUCTOR CHANGE

PROP. ELEC. CONDUCTORS ONLY

PROP. ELEC. AND GAS LINES ONLY

PROP. GAS LINE ONLY

EXIST. ELEC. CONDUCTORS ONLY

EX: 3R

3G 4D
and 350 AL cable for 1-phase secondary

= No. 1/0 AL cable for 3-phase primaryEXIST. GAS LINE ONLY

FUTURE ELECTRIC TRENCH

= No. 1/0 solid AL cable for three-phase primary

Marker to locate cable

Cable joint.

CABLE MATERIAL AND SIZE

F.

M.

K.

J.

I.

E.

D.

C.

B.

A.

T.

V.

W.

350 kcmil AL cable, 260 mils, 25KV.

750 kcmil AL cable, 280 mils, 28KV.

750 kcmil AL cable,175 mils, 15KV, or secondary.

500 kcmil copper cable,175 mils, 15KV, or secondary.

350 kcmil AL cable,175 mils,15KV, or secondary.

No 2 AL cable,175 mils,15KV, or secondary.

No 1/0 AL cable,175 mils,15KV, or secondary.

No 3/0 AL cable,175 mils, 15KV, or secondary.

No 1/0 stranded AL cable, 280 mils, 28KV.

No 3/0 stranded AL cable, 280 mils, 28KV.

350 kcmil AL stranded, 260 mils, 25KV, jacketed.

750 kcmil AL stranded, 280 mils, 28KV, jacketed.

G.

H.

N. Refer to Note on Drawing, N1 for Note 1, etc.

TT.

VT.

WT.

R.    No 1/0 AL, solid cable, 280 mils, 28KV.

No 1/0 AL stranded cable 280 mils, 28KV, jacketed

Streetlighting conductor (2/C-#10 CU) 

11.  Streetlighting conductor (2/C-#8 AL) 

13.  Streetlighting conductor (3/C-#1/0 AL) 

12.  Covered neutral  conductor for ducts

No 1/0 AL stranded cable, 260 mils tree-retardant INS, 25KV, Jacketed.

350 kcmil AL cable, 260 mils tree-retardant INS, 25KV, Jacketed.

750 kcmil AL cable, 260 mils tree-retardant INS, 25KV, Jacketed.

PROP. ELEC., GAS AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS

CATV
Other

Form 931 condensed

Pedestal (s) installed

Elec.Gas

Phone

Size Ft. SizeSize Ft.Ft.Ft.Size Size Ft.

Non-CE

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

Misc Comments:                                                          

               

largest Non-CE wire placed.

Wire installed is the Trench Footage of the 

Trench (Feet-Joint with CE)

Trench (Feet-Not Joint with CE)

Wire Install (Feet-non CE wire placed)

Pull thru conduit (feet-of conduit)

Boring (diameter of bore+feet bored)

M

 4

13A

4D

2-4C

104D

GENERAL NOTES ELECTRIC

  (Unless otherwise shown on plan)

1.  Main trench is to be installed 4 ft behind property lines.

5. Utility easements have been or shall be provided for utility placement.

3. Install cable markers at all other cable stubs.

  transformers and pedestals.

2. Services are to be stubbed at lot lines and in marker posts except at

6. Install secondary vaults/pedestals per Detail "A" and P 62-10 (EDM).

4. Install transformers per Detail "A" and P. 66-106-1 & P. 66-106-2 (EDM).

10/25X
2402

4D 4C

10 3'

FOR ROAD CROSSINGS

DEVELOPER TO INSTALL CONDUITS

  

  FIGURE 66-106-4

25 KVA DF FTR XFMR ASSY

  

  FIGURE 66-106-5

50 KVA DF FT XFMR ASSY

  

  FIGURE 66-106-1

50 KVA DF RF XFMR ASSY

13A

INSTALL

  FIGURE 64-40-1

SEC PEDESTAL

96  90'

95  90'

94  119'

93  112'

92  100'

91  100'

90  141'

89  78'

88  147'

87  222'

86  100'

85  100'

84  100'

83  111'

82  116'

 

FOOTAGES

FRONT LOT

PHASE 4
PHASE 5

FUTURE 

0401W04N
02-24-2022 11:44:57 SA_BOUD_JS_PROD_Design1894369.dgn

100006229338

JLNECNC

SIERRA RIDGE PHASE 4 ELAN, ECNC JLN

11362250  1056359685

LAKE LANSING

BURCHAM

0194

03 04010442

N

PARK LAKE RD

LAKE LANSING RD S2E

LCP 310-LBG

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT.

CUSTOMER REQUESTED JOINT UNDERGROUND LINES FOR NEXT PHASE OF 

NTS CO TWPINGHAM              MERIDIAN            

        

READ METER LOCATIONMETER ORDER NUMBER METER NUMBER

                

CONSUMERS ENERGY CONTACTS

DEPARTMENT NAME NUMBER

DESIGNER

COORDINATOR 517-282-2106

517-897-2725TYLER STOKES                 

ROBERT BEAGAN                

SUBSTATION

                    

CIRCUIT

                    

WD NO.

    

      

NO.

CKT

NO.

LCP

XCE STAKING REQ'D

FORESTRY REQ'D

Yes  No

X Yes  No
A CMS Energy Company ELECTRIC

SHEET D 2 1   OFSHEET SCALE

SECTIONALIZING DEVICE:

UPSTREAM 

LOCATION:

JOB PURPOSE:

TYPE

ORDER
NUMBER

NOTIFICATION
NUMBER

DESIGN

TYPE

MAT.
NUMBER

ORDER

           

ECNC STL 1056704175 11362750         

ESIC OHL 1056843204 11362258         

    

CM NO. 

                  

ESIC UGL 1056838827 11362256         

ELECTRIC CAD TITLE BLOCK (2020)

TLM NUMBER OHMS
# OF
RODS

T SEC.R



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

12.B 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Tim Dempsey, Township Manager 

Date:  January 30, 2026 

Re:  ITC Oneida-Sabine Lake Proposed Electric Transmission Routes  

 

A representative from ITC will be attending Tuesday evening’s meeting to present on the proposed 
routes. This will provide the Board an opportunity outside of the listening sessions to receive the 
latest information and ask questions. 

As a reminder, information on the project is available at: www.mifuturegrid.com/oneida-sabine-
lake/.  

http://www.mifuturegrid.com/oneida-sabine-lake/
http://www.mifuturegrid.com/oneida-sabine-lake/


Oneida-Sabine Lake Project
Meridian Township – 2/3/2026

Ben Tirrell, LGCA Regional Manager, ITC Michigan



Independent Transmission Company

Sole focus on transmission

2



3

Oneida-Sabine Lake

For the Oneida to Sabine Lake 
transmission project, ITC will: 
• Build a 345 kV station in 

Livingston County (Sabine 
Lake)

• Build a 50-mile, 345 kV line 
from Oneida station to Sabine 
Lake station



4

Preliminary Route Options



5

Public Input

Please submit feedback by February 19th to be considered in the first round of route refinements.

ROUTE FEEDBACK:

• Website www.mifuturegrid.com 

• Digital Form 

• Interactive Map

• Hard-Copy Forms from Community Listening Sessions

GENERAL PROJECT QUESTIONS & COMMENTS:

• Phone: 800-368-7640

• Email: OSL@itctransco.com

• Website Contact Us Form: https://www.mifuturegrid.com/oneida-sabinelake/contact-us/

http://www.mifuturegrid.com/


6

Questions?


	Agenda
	9A-Communications
	9B-Minutes
	9C-Bills
	9D-Pedestrian Bicycle Pathway Maintenance Contract Award
	9E-Black History Month Resolution
	9F-2025 Planning Commission Annual Report
	9G-2026 Concrete Repair Contract Award
	9H-EDC Appointment
	9I-MTA-Principles of Governance
	10A/12A-VOO BF Termination
	11A-Sanctuary#2 Streetlight SAD
	11B-Sierra Ridge Streetlighting SAD
	12B-ITC Proposed Routes
	OSL Meridian Township.pdf
	Oneida-Sabine Lake Project�Meridian Township – 2/3/2026
	Independent Transmission Company
	Oneida-Sabine Lake
	Preliminary Route Options
	Public Input
	Questions?




